
Capsule Summary 

Inventory No.WA-II-1172 
Martin L. Griffith Farmstead 
4718 Toyer Road 
Washington County, MD 
Ca. 1899; ca. 1920 
Access: Private 

The Martin L. Griffith Farmstead consists of approximately 3 acres of hardscrabble hillside land 

and the small complex of buildings including a log and frame dwelling house, frame out-kitchen, 

a small timber frame barn, concrete block springhouse, and a log tenant house with privy. Sited 

on the east face of Red Hill overlooking Pleasant Valley in southern Washington County, the 

surrounding hillside is primarily wooded with scattered log dwelling house sites and a number of 

new houses. There are 6 contributing buildings (described above) and 1 non-contributing block 

shed on the property. 

The Martin L. Griffith Farmstead is significant under National Register Criterion A as a 

component property of the post-emancipation African-American community located along the 

east face of Red Hill, primarily along Toyer Road. The farmstead is significant also under 

Criterion A as a representative example of agricultural development on the hardscrabble hill and 

mountainsides of west-central Maryland. Such hillside farmsteads, owned or tenanted by both 

white and black families throughout the region, were typically quite small, from 3 to 10 acres in 

the Red Hill area, and concentrated on subsistence and/or market products. The Martin L. 

Griffith Farmstead is significant under National Register Criterion C as an example of vernacular 

African-American domestic and agricultural architecture. The farmstead includes a 

characteristic collection of domestic and agricultural buildings, including a small hewn timber-
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framed barn, associated with hillside farming, a resource type that began to disappear with the 

decline of small farms beginning in the 1930s and 40s. 
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1 . N a m e O f P r o p e r t y (indicate preferred name) 

historic Griffith, Martin L. Farmstead (preferred) 

other James W. Nave Farmstead 

2. Location 
street and number 4718 Toyer Road 

city, town Keedysville 

county Washington 

3 . O w n e r O f P r o p e r t y (gives names and mailing addresses of al 

name Scott Sisson 

street and number 4718 Toyer Road 

city, town Keedysville 

4. Location of Legal Description 
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Washington Co. Courthouse 

city, town Hagerstown tax map 81 

5. Primary Location of Additional Data 

state MD 

liber 

tax parcel 70 

X 

owners) 

telephone 

zip code 

1807 folio 

not for publication 

vicinity 

301-432-6110 

21756 

328 

tax ID number N/A 

Contributing Resource in National Register District 

Contributing Resource in Local Historic District 

Determined Eligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 

Determined Ineligible for the National Register/Maryland Register 

Recorded by HABS/HAER 

Historic Structure Report or Research Report at MHT 

X Other: Not previously recorded. 

6. Classification 
Category Ownership Current Funct ion 

district public agriculture 

X building(s) X private commerce/trade 

structure both defense 

site X domestic 

object education 

funerary 

government 

health care 

industry 

landscape 

recreation/culture 

religion 

social 

transportation 

work in progress 

unknown 

vacant/not in use 

other: 

Resource Count 

Contributing Noncontributing 

6 _ 1__ buildings 

sites 

structures 

objects 

6 1 Total 

Number of Contributing Resources 

previously listed in the Inventory 

0 
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Condition 

excellent Deteriorated 

X good Ruins 

fair Altered 

Prepare both a one paragraph summary and a comprehensive description of the resource and its various elements as it 
exists today. 

Summary 

The Martin L. Griffith Farmstead consists of approximately 3 acres of hardscrabble 
hillside land and the small complex of buildings including a log and frame dwelling house, frame 
out-kitchen, a small timber frame barn, concrete block springhouse, and a log tenant house with 
privy. Sited on the east face of Red Hill overlooking Pleasant Valley in southern Washington 
County, the surrounding hillside is primarily wooded with scattered log dwelling house sites and 
a number of new houses. There are 6 contributing buildings (described above) and 1 non-
contributing block shed on the property. 

The 3-acre Martin L. Griffith Farmstead was part of a 10 3/4-acre farmstead first 
developed in 1899 from one of the "Antietam Works" mountain woodlots of Red Hill. Located 
on the west side of Toyer Road, a county road segment that turns into a non-county gravel dead 
end within several hundred feet, the terrain is primarily deciduous wooded hillside on the east 
face of Red Hill. A grove of pines covering several acres stands on the north side of the building 
complex. The building complex sits within approximately two acres of grass lawn, gravel 
driveway, and wetland below the springhead. The farmstead has changed only gradually over its 
c. 100-year existence, primarily through various additions to the house and removal of several 
agricultural outbuildings. 

Dwelling House 

The dwelling house is a two-story, two bay, log house on stone foundation with several 
frame additions. The front, log section of the house was probably constructed c.1899. Windows 
are two over two sash; the original wood German lapped siding has been covered with vinyl 
siding. The roof is channeled metal sheets. The front (east) elevation has a raised concrete block 
porch, which wraps around to a new one-story, frame shed addition on the south elevation. The 
porch has a corrugated metal shed roof supported on 4" x 4" square posts. 

A full-length, two-story, frame shed addition across the west (rear) elevation, probably 
c.1920, added 4 rooms to the original 2-room log house. The addition raised the west roof 
elevation giving the building a "salt-box" appearance. The rear addition is one bay deep and two 
bays across the back; windows are smaller two over two sash. A brick chimney with a tall, 
corbelled brick extension rises from the center of the west (rear) wall to the addition. A one-
story frame shed addition extending west from the west elevation encloses a furnace room over 
the concrete cistern (no longer in use). 

On the north elevation of the house, the rear addition extends beyond the north wall of 
the log section approximately 5 feet. A small shed-roofed pantry addition is located within the 
corner made by the extended rear addition. A shed-roofed porch on the north elevation of the 



Maryland Historical Trust 
Maryland Inventory of inventory NO . WA-II-1172 

Historic Properties Form 

Name Martin L. Griffith Farmstead 
Continuation Sheet 

Number _7_ Page 1 

rear addition has been enclosed, forming an attachment to the frame out-kitchen on the north­
west corner. 

The interior floor plan of the house has been much altered by the various additions to the 
house and is currently undergoing renovations. However, the original log section of the house 
was, and remains, one room on the first floor and one room on the second floor. Moldings are all 
unpainted, stained wood. Baseboards are unpainted, stained lengths of German lapped siding 
boards. Stairs to the second floor are located in the northwest corner of the log section; 
originally boxed and running westward, the stairs were altered with the rear addition c.1920 and 
are now accessed from the kitchen (northwest room of the rear addition) and run eastward. The 
upper room of the log section was originally unplastered. Exposed log walls show evidence of 
whitewash and later whitewashed canvas covering. Ceiling joists and boards were covered with 
wallpaper. Access to the upper story addition rooms was cut through the rear (west) log wall. 
The lower story of the rear addition included a back parlor or dining room (now completely 
striped) and a kitchen. The cellar is accessed through an exterior bulkhead with stone steps. The 
cellar is stone-lined with concrete floor and appears to have been used for cold storage. Joists for 
the log section above are round logs. 

Out-kitchen 

The one-story, frame out-kitchen was originally a stand-alone building, probably dating 
c.1899. It was joined to the dwelling house by the enclosure of the north porch, probably within 
the 1990s. The building is gable-front, facing east, with a door and window. The exterior is 
sided with wood lapped siding. A small, fixed six-light window in the east gable indicates a 
storage loft above the kitchen room although there is no stair access from the interior room. A 
brick interior chimney rises from the west gable. A second door is located on the south elevation 
and a window on the north. The interior is plastered and lined with wainscot. The exposed 
interior flue hole on the brick chimney indicates use of a freestanding wood fired cook stove. 
There is no evidence of a hearth. 

Springhouse 

Located immediately north of the dwelling house is the small, gable-fronted concrete 
block springhouse. The roof structure is framed with scrap wood and has metal sheet covering. 
Although a date of construction is unknown, the building covers an ever-flowing springhead, and 
likely replaced an earlier version of similar size and shape. The spring flows eastward (down 
hill) and spreads into a marshy area northeast of the house, which at one time had been excavated 
as a shallow pond. 
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Barn 

Due west and uphill of the dwelling house complex is the small timber frame barn facing 
east. The two-story barn is designed similarly to the larger bank barns typical of the area with 
lower story stalls, a storage area above, and cantilevered forebay; however there is no banked 
access to the upper story and no central threshing floor (probably not needed since no wheat 
would have been grown on this small hardscrabble farmstead). The upper story was used for hay 
storage only and access was achieved by ladder through an exterior door on the south elevation 
or through a floor opening in the northeast interior corner. The framing of the barn is hewn 
timbers with mortise and tenon joints. Siding varies including vertical board and batten, vertical 
boards, and horizontal boards. The barn appears to have included two stalls but the stall area is 
now one open room for storage with access through hinged, board and "Z" batten doors on the 
south elevation. The barn roof is covered with corrugated metal sheets. 

A frame, shed addition with metal roof extends from the west elevation, described in a 
1948 property sale as the "garage." A faint roof shadow on the north elevation indicates the 
probable location of a "hog pen," also described in the 1948 sale. A "chicken house with metal 
roof," described in the sale ad, was located along the southern property boundary line near the 
barn but was demolished in the 1990s. 

Approximately halfway between the house and the barn is a lawnmower shed, 
approximately 10 feet square, constructed of concrete block with a hipped sheet metal roof. This 
was constructed in the 1990s by previous owners and is considered non-contributing. 

Tenant House and Privy 

North of the dwelling house, on the north side of the spring marsh area, and fronting east 
onto Toyer Road is a very small 1 14 story log tenant house. The log building is stuccoed with a 
shed entrance porch covering the east door. There is one six over six sash window in the east 
elevation as well. One other window in the south elevation is sash but the glass and muntins are 
gone. The north and south gable peaks are finished with wood lapped siding and have a fixed 
six-light window in each. All windows have a simple flat board or shelf architrave. The west 
(rear) elevation has no openings; an exterior concrete block chimney rises along the exterior wall 
surface. The roof is covered with corrugated metal sheets. The roof has exposed rafter tails, 
some exhibit evidence of hand tool work. 

The interior is one room on the ground floor and one room above. The loft room is 
accessed by plank stairs in the southeast corner. The round log construction is exposed on the 
stair wall. The building is vacant and in deteriorating condition. 

Approximately 100 feet to the west of the tenant house is a frame privy. 
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Period Areas of Significance Check and justify below 

1600-1699 X agriculture economics health/medicine performing arts 

1700-1799 archeology education industry philosophy 

1800-1899 X architecture engineering invention politics/government 

X 1900-1999 art entertainment/ landscape architecture religion 

2000- commerce recreation law _ science 

communications ethnic heritage literature X social history 

community planning exploration/ maritime history transportation 

conservation settlement military other: 

Specific dates c. 1899-1948 

Construction dates c. 1899; c. 1920 

Evaluation for: 

National Register 

Architect/Builder 

Maryland Register 

unknown 

X not evaluated 

Prepare a one-paragraph summary statement of significance addressing applicable criteria, followed by a narrative discussion of the 
history of the resource and its context. (For compliance projects, complete evaluation on a DOE Form - see manual.) 

Summary of Significance 

The Martin L. Griffith Farmstead is significant under National Register Criterion A as a 
component property of the post-emancipation African-American community located along the 
east face of Red Hill, primarily along Toyer Road. The farmstead is significant also under 
Criterion A as a representative example of agricultural development on the hardscrabble hill and 
mountainsides of west-central Maryland. Such hillside farmsteads, owned or tenanted by both 
white and black families throughout the region, were typically quite small, from 3 to 10 acres in 
the Red Hill area, and concentrated on subsistence and/or market products. The Martin L. 
Griffith Farmstead is significant under National Register Criterion C as an example of vernacular 
African-American domestic and agricultural architecture. The farmstead includes a 
characteristic collection of domestic and agricultural buildings, including a small hewn timber-
framed barn, associated with hillside farming, a resource type that began to disappear with the 
decline of small farms beginning in the 1930s and 40s. 

Resource History 

The Martin L. Griffith Farmstead, like the surrounding hillside farms of Red Hill, was 
originally part of the vast peripheral woodlands owned by the Antietam Iron Works located at 
the mouth of the Antietam Creek. Wood in massive quantities was required for the production 
charcoal, used to fire the iron furnaces. After the death of Iron Works owner John Brien around 
1834, much of the hillside woodland was divided into linear lots of 10-30 acres (see attached 
1859 map of Red Hill area).1 Over the following several decades these lots were sold 
individually, many as mountain woodlots. But others were further subdivided and sold to men 
and women, both black and white, seeking inexpensive land to farm for the support of their 
families. 
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Around 1860, several enterprising free black men began purchasing lots on the east side 
of Red Hill, among them were Aaron Booth and Henry Griffith. While Booth sold off smaller 
farmsteads to a number of families along the east side of a lane now known as Toyer Road, 
Griffith established a farm of 60 acres at the eastern base of the hill adjoining the smaller 
farmsteads.2 In 1874, Griffith purchased a 10 3A -acre "mountain lot" from Noah Rohrbach for 
$340.3 Judging by the price, although modest, it appears there may have been improvements 
already on the property. Many of the adjoining lots along the lane (Toyer Road) had been 
purchased or were tenanted by a growing community of African-Americans following 
emancipation inl864. Most of the lots had been occupied for several years prior to purchase and 
it is quite possible that one of Henry Griffith's several sons, possibly Abraham, was already 
living on the 10 % -acre lot (see attached 1877 Atlas map).4 

By 1880, there were at least 20 black and mulatto families living in the east Red Hill 
community according to the census. Included among them was Abraham Griffith, a "Stone 
Mason," and Henry Griffith, a "Farmer," his wife and 3 remaining children, including Martin L., 
the youngest at age 16. When Henry Griffith died in 1899, his farm passed to his widow Annie 
and oldest son Noah.5 Martin L. Griffith was nearly 40 years old at the time of his father's death. 
Already with a wife and probably a family, he immediately purchased 9 acres of the mountain lot 
from his brother Noah, executor of the will, for $10.6 Despite the low price and a low appraisal 
($40), it seems likely that Martin Griffith and his family already occupied the lot "near Mt. Briar 
Church." The Mt. Briar Church had been established in 1896 with Abraham and Noah Griffith 
both members of the Board of Trustees who purchased the land on which the church was 
constructed.7 

Martin Griffith and family occupied a three-room, two-story log house on the farmstead. 
The one-room kitchen was located behind the house and the small barn farther back. In 1909, 
Griffith purchased the remaining 1 % acres of the original lot from his brother Noah.8 Additional 
improvements probably included the small tenant house on the north side of the spring. The 
Griffiths remained on the farmstead until 1921 when it was sold to James Nave for $1,000.9 

Nave owned the farmstead until his death in 1948. During his ownership a number of 
improvements were made, including the addition of 9 acres of woodland, an important source of 
heat as well as a marketable commodity. His building improvements were described in the 
newspaper advertisement of the sale of the Nave property in October 1948.10 

.. .being improved by a six room frame, metal roof, two story dwelling house, 
summer kitchen attached; this house has no modern conveniences and is in a fair 
state of repair; frame garage with metal roof; chicken house with metal roof; 
frame stable; hog pen, also a small log house containing one large room, attic and 
metal roof. Two springs, one elevated... 

Nave's additions to the original house had changed the roofline to include the three rooms on the 
back, giving the house its "salt-box" appearance it retains today. The "elevated" spring, 
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mentioned in Nave's estate sale, is now enclosed with the concrete block springhouse. Although 
the chicken house and hog pen have since been removed, clearly the farmstead was active in its 
production of subsistence food, and probably some local market goods. 

By the 1940s and 1950s, the small Red Hill community had begun to disband as small 
farms were losing their financial viability and city employment drew families away from rural 
homesteads. James Nave's hillside farmstead of 20 acres sold for a mere $1,700, purchased by 
Melba Garmong.11 Garmong may have been a Nave relative since in 1998 Robert Stone, a "sub-

1 9 

trustee for Jacob R. Nave," sold the farmstead to Donna Zimmerman. The renewed popularity 
of hillside land, not for subsistence farms, but for homes "with a view" is revealed in the 
purchase price of the 20-acre farmstead in 1999 of $118,000.13 The farmstead has since been 
subdivided, leaving much of the historic building complex and its setting intact on a 3-acre lot 
fronting on Toyer Road. 

Note: For Historical Context, please refer to An Agricultural History of Mid-Maryland, a 
Maryland Historical Trust grant funded context development project administered 
through The Catoctin Center for Regional Studies, 2002-2003. 
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10. Geographical Data 

Acreage of surveyed property Approx. 3 acres 

Acreage of historical setting Approx. 2 acres 

Quadrangle name Keedysville, MD Quad Quadrangle scale 1:24,000 

Verbal boundary description and justification 

The Martin L. Griffith Farmstead boundaries are defined by the boundary outlines of Parcel 70, Washington County tax 
map #81. The parcel includes all of the historic buildings associated with the farmstead and enough of the setting to retain its 
historic associations. 

11. Form Prepared by 

name/title Paula S. Reed, PhD., Architectural Historian; Edie Wallace, Historian 

organization Paula S. Reed & Associates, Inc. date March 2003 

street & number 105 N. Potomac Street telephone 301-739-2070 

city or town Hagerstown state Maryland 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature 
to be found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only and do not 
constitute any infringement of individual property rights. 

return to: Maryland Historical Trust 
DHCD/DHCP 
100 Community Place 
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023 
410-514-7600 
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Washington County, Maryland," thesis, Goucher College, 2003. 
5 Washington Co. Will Book I, page 408. 
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Washington Co. Deed Book [need reference]. Interestingly, the church appears to have had a mixed (white 
and mulatto) membership. The Griffith family had, in fact, been identified as "white" on the 1870 
census, although they are listed on both the 1860 and 1880 census' as "mullato." The neighborhood of 
Red Hill and Mt. Briar was quite mixed with several households having mixed marriages. Most of the 
"black" families lived along the lane now known as Toyer Road. 
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